UBERSREIK Adventures

• THE MAD MEN OF GOTHEIM •

CREDITS

Design and Writing: Dave Allen Additional Writing: Andy Law Illustration: Henrik Rosenborg, Jonathan O'Donoghue, Matteo Spirito, Sam Manley, Scott Purdy Graphic Design: Andy Law, Paul Bourne Layout: Rachael Macken Cartography: Jérôme Huguenin Proofreading: Tim Gray, Aric Wieder Editing: Síne Quinn Producer: Andy Law Publisher: Dominic McDowall

Special thanks: Games Workshop

Published by: Cubicle 7 Entertainment Ltd, Unit 6, Block 3, City North Business Campus, Co. Meath, Ireland

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise without the prior permission of the publishers.





Warhammer Fantasy Roleplay 4th Edition © Copyright Games Workshop Limited 2019 Warhammer Fantasy Roleplay 4th Edition, the Warhammer Fantasy Roleplay 4th Edition logo, GW, Games Workshop, Warhammer, The Game of Fantasy Battles, the twintailed comet logo, and all associated logos, illustrations, images, names, creatures, races, vehicles, locations, weapons, characters, and the distinctive likeness thereof, are either ® or TM, and/or © Games Workshop Limited, variably registered around the world, and used under licence. Cubicle 7 Entertainment and the Cubicle 7 Entertainment logo are trademarks of Cubicle 7 Entertainment

CONTENTS

Adventure Summary
Getting Started
Part 1: Gotheim
The Frenzied Mob4
Maddened Villagers4
The Worsening Situation in Gotheim
Talking Sense to Villagers
Part 2: Entering Gotheim
Cottages
The Map of Gotheim6
The Red Queen Coaching Inn
Klara Kellner the Barmaid6
Wilhelm Kreigrisch the Burgomeister7
The Forge
Hugo Schmidt the Blacksmith7
Emil Brauer the Brewer8
Kai Bauerr the Builder9
Bruno Bäcker the Baker9
Getting the Most from the Forge10
The Barbershop and Surgery 10
Getting the Most from the Barbershop and Surgery 10
The Temple of Sigmar 11
The Brats: Perle, Schneck, and Kal11
Martha Scheren the Barber Surgeon12
The Brook, the Lake, and the Levee
Gerd Fleisher the Butcher13
Maria Bäcker the Baker13
Water Disaster13
To the Stone Circle 13
Complications14
Over Too Soon?14
I Don't Get It14
Securing Help14
Part 3: To the Jabberslythe's Lair15
The Cool House 15
The Monster15
Aftermath
Rewards16
Handouts17



• THE MAD MEN OF GOTHEIM •



Ubersreik Adventures: The Mad Men of Gotheim is a short scenario that can be played either as a stand-alone or as the Characters travel from one place to another. The adventure assumes the Characters are travelling by foot along the Ubersreik–Auerswald road, but it can be easily relocated to any road location in the Empire.

Most of the adventure involves exploring and investigating a devastated village. If the Characters act quickly they can prevent further disaster and kill the monster responsible for the carnage.

ADVENTURE SUMMARY

The village of Gotheim is in ruins. A rampaging Jabberslythe (WFRP, page 322) has slain its people, wrecked their dwellings, and reduced the handful of survivors to a state of lunacy. Those remaining do not fully understand the cause of their afflictions, but they are aware something is very much awry.

The Characters come across Gotheim in the aftermath of this terrible disaster. After an attack from the more dangerous survivors, the Characters find the remaining villagers facing various perils. The Characters can determine the cause of the horror by piecing together any coherent information they uncover. They can then avert further disasters by talking the villagers out of their maddened schemes, and work with them to track down the Jabberslythe, and perhaps even kill it once and for all.

GETTING STARTED

To play this scenario your Characters should be travelling the Ubersreik–Auerswald road. The Characters should arrive at Gotheim relatively early in the day, leaving them enough time to investigate the village and resolve what happened before the sun sets.

Before play, it is recommended you read through the scenario at least once. When you feel confident with everything that happens, you're ready to begin.

GOTHEIM

Gotheim is a small farming community focused on cultivation of wheat and goat herding. The village also acts as a hub for nearby farmsteads, helping them process their harvest and sell it onwards to more distant markets.

Thanks to its position on an important trade route, Gotheim has the air of a town, offering a number of services normally unseen in smaller villages. The local farmers jokingly refer to Gotheim as 'the city', but it is anything but, containing only a score or so buildings.

Wilhelm Kreigrisch is the village elder, but everyone knows him as 'the Burgomeister'. Gotheim boasts a wellappointed forge, its own barbershop and surgery, a large coaching inn, and a temple of Sigmar that doubles as a school house. To the north of the village, a rough stone levee holds back the trapped waters of a forest stream, providing the village with a reservoir and source of power for mills.

But the veneer of urban sophistication is thin. Rural traditions and lifestyles still predominate. During the winter months the village is a dormant, silent place. A small stone circle nearby is dedicated to the Old Faith. Each Mitterfruhl, the villagers troop there in order to take part in the sort of folksy fertility rites that provoke suspicion, scorn, and embarrassment from visiting city folk.

Gotheim is defended by a tall, wooden palisade and a large gatehouse set between two drystone towers. Normally the gates are guarded by archers who patrol the perimeter and watch for danger from the towers, but when the Characters arrive, this is not the case.

There are two large barns to the north of the village. One of these has been destroyed by the Jabberslythe. The other contains a herd of 12 goats.

THE FRENZIED MOB

Before the Characters reach Gotheim, they are attacked by a mob of rampaging villagers, turned berserk by the proximity of the Jabberslythe. They are convinced that anything approaching their village is a new threat to be eliminated.

Before the attack begins, the Characters are able to hear the frenzied mob approach, running through the trees to the west of the road, whooping and yelling threats as they close in. The mob bursts from the treeline 3 Rounds after they are first heard. There are as many people in the mob as there are Characters, plus one extra.

Maddened Villagers

The maddened villagers attack with tools and sticks they have scavenged. They are heedless of their own safety and determined to kill any perceived threat to the village or die in the attempt. They ignore any attempts at communication, screaming defiance as they charge. *We see you, daemons?* or *'We won't listen to your lies! Morr take you.*' or, *'More spawn of darkness! Quick, bring them down!*'

The Characters probably have to fight to defend themselves, but if they figure out a workable plan to trap or mislead the mob, then it is easy enough to fool. The villagers are purely focused on confronting the nearest threat and attacking it, regardless of how foolhardy this is. They are catastrophically disturbed. It will take many months of the best rehabilitative care a Shallyan institution can offer for any hope of recovery.



WORSENING SITUATION IN GOTHEIM

Once they have dealt with the frenzied mob, the Characters are free to enter what remains of the devastated village of Gotheim.

The fact that the village has been the subject of a major attack is obvious. The gates are shattered. The tower to the right of the gatehouse is a ruin and the palisade is breached in four places. Inside the village is a scene of chaos and carnage. Cottages have been torn apart and lie in shattered heaps. Some smoulder, threatening to break out into flames, others are already burning.

The corpses of the slain lie scattered about the rubble. Most of the bodies bear the signs of having been savaged by a great beast. However, a few have been hacked apart with weapons, victims of their frenzied neighbours.

There are many tracks throughout the devastation, but the massive four-toed impressions left by the Jabberslythe's forelimbs are easily discerned amongst the villagers' much smaller footprints.

The Jabberslythe attacked a few hours before dawn when most of the villagers were asleep. It began its frenzied assault by flying around the gatehouse, killing the confused guards and wrecking the tower. It then landed in the village courtyard by the well. From there it rampaged about in an indiscriminate fashion before cornering a group of unfortunate villagers near the Sigmarite temple. There it was dealt a number of deep wounds by Gotheim's determined priestess, but this initially did little more than anger the enormous beast. The Jabberslythe tore the priestess's head from her shoulders, but by then it had been reduced to a wretched state and was bleeding from many grievous wounds. The beast took to the air and flew to a nearby resting place — a dark cave used by the villagers as a cool house.

If the Characters are proactive during their time in the village they will be able to prevent a number of the villagers from hurting themselves or their neighbours. However, if they waste time then additional disasters will take place in Gotheim.

There is also the matter of the Jabberslythe. It has retreated to recuperate in a cool cave to the east, and steadily regains its strength as a result of its regenerative abilities. At the start of the adventure the Jabberslythe is reduced to 15 wounds and suffers from a Broken Jaw (2 *Fatigued Conditions*), a Devastated Eye (3 *Blinded*, 2 *Bleeding*, and 1 *Fatigued Condition*), a Broken Nose (2 *Bleeding Conditions*) and Bruised Ribs (-10 to Agility Tests). As in-game time passes the Jabberslythe will recover.

UBERSREIK ADVENTURES: THE MAD MEN OF GOTHEIM

TIMELINE						
Game Time Expired	Events Occurring in Village	Jabberslythe Wounds				
15 mins		18.				
30 mins	Wilhelm the burgomeister dies performing a dangerous stunt.	25. The Jabberslythe heals its Broken Jaw.				
45 mins		31.				
1 hr	A fire breaks out in the forge and the men there are all killed in the blaze.	39. The Jabberslythe heals its Bruised Ribs.				
1 hr 15 mins	11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	44.				
1 hr 30 mins	Martha the barber surgeon leads the remaining village children into the forest never to be seen again. If the forge is saved Hugo completes his suit of armour.	49. The Jabberslythe heals its Broken Nose.				
1 hr 45 mins	The villagers at the lake succeed in breaching the levee, the resulting flood destroys much of what remains of Gotheim.	60. The Jabberslythe heals its Devastated Eye				
2 hrs		68. Fully healed.				

TALKING SENSE TO VILLAGERS

In the encounters that follow, the Characters meet a number of villagers who are behaving irrationally. Those who faced the Jabberslythe directly have had their minds catastrophically snapped. However, the villagers who hid from the creature, or only saw its rampage from a distance, are still psychologically disturbed, but to a lesser extent, and it is possible to reason with them with a little perseverance and patience.

Various approaches can be made in order to talk sense to villagers. Some can be charmed, intimidated, or advised out of their behaviour, whilst others are under a negative influence that can potentially be removed. Notes on how to talk sense to an NPC are given in their individual descriptions.

If the Characters find themselves forced to come to blows with the villagers, the Gotheimers have standard Human Character Profiles (see **Maddened Villagers** on page 4) with the exception of Hugo the blacksmith and Gerd the butcher, who both have **WS** 40, **S** 40, and **T** 40, providing them with 15 Wounds.

Persistent Characters may be able to interact with those who directly witnessed the maddening Jabberslythe. However, for all they may be able to get some lucidity from those worse affected, such folk remain permanently disturbed, and are never able to recover from the mental trauma. Most witnesses of a Jabberslythe are preoccupied with ever-present fear and torn between desperate selfpreservation or battling suicidal impulses, but many are much worse.

ENTERING GOTHEIM

As the Characters enter the village read them the following:

Through the shattered gates is a scene of shocking devastation. The village has been subjected to an attack of sudden, intense violence. Many of the small cottages that stood here have been pulled apart, reduced to piles of wood and reed. Tongues of flame rise from some of these piles. The palisade that rings the village has been torn apart in places, the heavy stakes reduced to matchwood. Corpses are strewn about like wheatsheafs after harvest, and the heavy impressions of huge, four-toed feet lead a winding path through the carnage. To your left a tall coaching inn still stands undamaged. Raised voices echo from within. To your right smoke rises from the interior of a small village forge, and the tall brass dome of a temple of Sigmar proudly dominates the skyline before you.

COTTAGES

Most buildings in Gotheim are poor peasant dwellings consisting of just one or two rooms. The cottages have solid walls constructed in varying degrees of drystone wall, wooden planking, and wattle-and-daub. They are topped with steeply sloping roofs of thick reed thatching. Many of these dwellings have been pulled apart by the Jabberslythe. Furthermore, some of the ruined cottages have caught on fire. The burning cottages may well concern the Characters, and certainly add to the hellish atmosphere of the scene, but left to their own devices they will eventually burn themselves out without spreading further.

A large copper still has been erected next to one of the intact cottages to the north of the village. This is the residence of Emil Brauer, the village's brewer. He has survived the attack and can be found in the forge.



THE RED QUEEN COACHING INN

The Red Queen is a large two-storey inn adjacent to a stable. It is an impressive half-timbered building, decorated with comic friezes depicting fabulous beasts in a state of inebriation. The inn's sign depicts a fanciful illustration of Empress Beatrice holding hammer and sceptre.

It stands next to a wide courtyard paved with irregular flagstones. A large round well stands in the centre of the courtyard. The ground floor is taken up with a spacious barroom, a small kitchen, and cramped bedchambers for the staff. Upstairs there are five modest double rooms for visitors and a common room with a dozen straw mattresses strewn on the floor. The bar is stocked with copious quantities of cheap ale and wine, as well as a few jars of Emil's foul schnapps.

When the Characters enter the inn, they immediately become aware of raised voices from the upper floor. An elderly man is yelling, '*Take your hands off of me! Let me go! It's the only way out! The only way out!* In response a woman can be heard pleading, '*No Wilhelm! Please! Don't do it!* If the Characters investigate, they find Wilhelm and Klara in an upstairs corridor, next to an open window that overlooks the sloping roof of the stable below. Wilhelm is perched on a bar stool poised to jump through the window but Klara is holding him back and clinging to his arm.

Klara Kellner the Barmaid

Klara is a woman in her 30s dressed in a leather jerkin, green pantaloons, and a large white apron. She is short and stout, with close-cropped dark hair. Normally a practical person with a mischievous sense of humour, the Jabberslythe attack has left her fearful and panicked.



If Wilhelm the burgomeister is prevented from jumping from the window, Klara slumps to the shattered floor, confused. If engaged in conversation, she speaks slowly, her eyes blinking repeatedly as she rubs at her suddenly throbbing temples.

She does not recall much of the attack, but she knows she was terrified. If asked, she will claim it was dark when she heard a great crash outside. She went to the window to see what it was and saw a large winged creature of some kind land by the well before it lumbered about the village, screaming horrifically. Then everything became confused. She remembers nothing more.

If Wilhelm is not stopped, Klara is overwhelmed with a grief so deep she collapses, gasping for breath and sobs uncontrollably. If left alone for any length of time, she will follow in Wilhelm's footsteps, stepping from the inn's upper floor, tears streaming from her horrified face.

Wilhelm Kreigrisch the Burgomeister

Before the Jabberslythe attack Wilhelm was the most respected inhabitant of Gotheim. He spent most of his time in the coaching inn, greeting visitors and holding meetings with local farmers. He is 63 years old with sparse white locks of hair and a tremendous beer gut. He dresses rather ostentatiously for a peasant, wearing a colourful red jerkin with slashed fabric to show off the puffy white linen shirt underneath.

As a youth Wilhelm once escaped from the Red Queen after the inn caught fire. He jumped from the window and slid down the stable roof with only a twisted ankle to show for his troubles. Now he believes that repeating this feat is the only way he can escape the madness around him,

> but if he is left to jump he tumbles gracelessly and breaks his neck.



The Characters can talk Wilhelm down if they deal with him politely and patiently, but it requires a successful Difficult (-10) Charm Test.

Should that happen, Wilhelm collapses in wide-eyed horror, utterly appalled at what he was about to do. He begins to tremble violently and initially refuses to talk with anyone. These shakes subside after a day or so, but his hands and eyes forever twitch, moving to full spasm when Morrsleib, the Chaos Moon, is full, and he develops a significant stutter.

Unsurprisingly, Wilhelm is not particularly coherent for some time. If engaged, he repeats words frequently, looks over shoulders at things that are not there, and can't stop trembling. If pressed, he remembers little of the attack besides some crashing in the darkness outside his cottage, and an overwhelming sense of terror. Ш

THE FORGE

The forge is to the right of the town gates. The forge is made to the same general plan as the cottages, but is larger and squatter. To the side of the building, the wide bulge of the furnace tapers upward to a tall flue. The forge roof is tiled in slate. A pile of chopped logs is stacked at the building's rear. Sounds of hammering and raised voices echo from within.

Four surviving villagers are inside. They were asleep when the village was attacked, and only saw the terrifying monster from a distance in the gloom of the night. They are somewhat lucid and aware of their situation. However, they are crazed enough to think that they are able to take the monster on if only they could decide what it was that attacked them and how best to kill it.

Hugo Schmidt the Blacksmith

Hugo is the nominal leader of the group — it is his forge after all. He is a huge, muscular, belligerent man from faroff Altdorf, and working the anvil has cursed him with painful joints. Hugo is verbose and amuses himself by setting the world to rights when others have nothing to say.

Hugo briefly caught a glance of the beast before he panicked and hid from it. He believes the creature that attacked the village was a massive toad that lives in the lake to the north of the village. He thinks it attacks people with a long sticky tongue. His plan is to produce a spiky suit of armour in the hope the beast will injure itself as it attacks. He is busy strapping and riveting a variety of sharp objects to an ancient suit of armour.

Potentially this is a good plan, as the Jabberslythe does use its tongue to attack people. However, Hugo has become heedless of the normal safety measures he takes in his forge. He constantly adds fuel to an already raging fire even though he isn't making use of the furnace. He barks at his companions to fetch more wood and to pump the bellows.

Hugo only responds to flattery concerning his obvious capability.

If a Character points out the potential usefulness of his skills and passes a Very Hard (-30) Charm Test, Hugo will quickly realise the danger posed by his flaming furnace, and will immediately set about controlling the fire, calling to others for help.

Emil Brauer the Brewer

Emil is middle-aged, fat, short, gruff, heavily bearded, and possessed of a nose that looks like a bulbous ripe strawberry. Emil is not much of a brewer, but he has assembled a still near his shack from which he irregularly produces batches of cloudy, rough schnapps. Like Hugo, Emil only caught a brief glimpse of the monster before he panicked and hid. Emil argues with Hugo that the monster was a not a toad because it definitely had horns. He also points out that during the attack the monster left Emil's still untouched, so he thinks it must find schnapps poisonous. He says Hugo should coat his armour in schnapps so that the monster poisons itself when it uses its tongue. This is a silly idea in and of itself. Schnapps will have no particular effect. But there are substances in the village that could be employed in a similar way (see the **Barbershop and Surgery** on page 10). As Hugo is largely ignoring Emil's advice, he sits in a corner of the smithy sulking.

The only way to make Emil respond is to bully him into place.

If a Character tells him to pull himself together and passes a **Difficult (-10) Intimidate** Test, he quickly becomes lucid. But, moments later, he will begin to moan about his aching head. Then moan about the devastation. Then moan about anything the Characters encounter from that point onwards. He won't leave the Characters' side for fear the beast should return again.





Kai Bauerr the Builder

Kai is an energetic young man in his 20s — tall, dark, handsome, and eager to please. He is simple and holds few strong opinions. Kai's inclination is to back up whatever Hugo says. He desperately gathers wood from the pile outside and feeds it into the furnace.



Kai was asleep when the Jabberslythe attacked Gotheim, and all he saw of it was a shape rising into the air near the village's Temple of Sigmar. Perhaps as a consequence of his limited intellect, or maybe because he was never in the vicinity of the creature, Kai appears to be largely unaffected.

He looks sceptical at the notion that the monster is a great toad. If a Character should seek his opinion on the matter he says, 'I suppose it does look like a toad, sir, in many ways, but I'm sure it had wings. Toads don't usually have wings do they?"

Kai follows any common sense advice the Characters should offer.

He remembers precious little about the morning attack beyond the beating wings.

Bruno Bäcker the Baker

Bruno is a cheerful man with a gung-ho attitude. When young, he spent some time with a mercenary company and he has had more experience of the wider world than most. He is handsome with close cropped fair hair.

Bruno suffers from involuntary tics and occasionally blurts out motivational phrases and snatches of songs. This is a nervous condition he had prior to the attack, though it has become worse since. Bruno's memory of the beast is confused. He recalls peering through the dark and seeing a gaping wound on its flank knit together and heal before his eyes. As a result, he is now convinced it was a Troll.

Bruno came to the forge because he knows about the vulnerability Trolls have to fire. He thinks that if Hugo would help him they could work together to heat up the anvil to an extreme temperature and drop it on a troll. Hugo rightly considers the logistics of such an operation to be impractical, so has dismissed the idea.

So, Bruno simply helps with the fire as he blurts encouragement to any close by and sings nonsense songs. He says things like 'this is the life, lads!', 'we're on fire here!', or 'the end's in sight!' no matter how pertinent such expressions are to the situation. The lyrics to Sigmar's Silver Hammer are also stuck in his head. 'Whap! Crack! Sigmar's Silver Hammer came down atop his skull. Slap! Rap! Sigmar's Silver Hammer his brains did annul!'

For all Bruno's plan is clearly ill-conceived, its inspiration is not without some merit as Jabberslythes do regenerate and fire does impair this ability.

Any friendly face is likely to win Bruno's trust.

If a Character passes an **Easy (+40) Charm** Test whilst trying to win him over, Bruno falls in behind, and won't stop offering supportive remarks between singing his nonsense rhymes.



Getting the Most from the Forge

In order to prevent the situation in the forge deteriorating, the Characters have to talk sense into at least two of the men present. If this is achieved, the forge will not burn down.

Provided he is given enough support, Hugo will complete the job of attaching a number of spikes to the suit of armour at the 1 hour 30 minute mark. Hugo plans to wear the suit himself, but he could be convinced to make a gift of it to any PC who impresses him as a warrior. A Human or Elf around six feet in height could feasibly wear the armour, but it's the wrong size for anyone else.

The spiky armour counts as full plate armour (or heavy armour, if using the Quick Armour optional rules). Every time the Jabberslythe successfully uses its Tongue Attack against a Character in the armour, it suffers a Weapon+9 hit using its own SL to hit to determine Damage. Further, any Character wearing the armous ignores any *Entangled* Conditions the Jabberlythe inflicts with its tongue.

However, the suit is hastily constructed, brittle, and difficult to maintain. If the armour ever suffers Damage, enough of the spikes break off to render them ineffective. Given that the armour is rather ancient, ugly, and now reminiscent of the spiked suits of armour worn by some servants of Chaos, a Character who wears it outside the context of monster slaying is likely to become an object of ridicule, fear, or a witch hunt. Further, Hugo will want it back. THE BARBERSHOP AND SURGERY

Martha Scheren's barbershop and surgery can be found near the centre of the devastated village. It is a large cottage constructed from strong timbers. To its side is a small lean-to structure, just large enough to accommodate two chairs and a small desk. A red and white sign depicting a pulled molar hangs above the door to this small room and creaks in the wind.

When she was working, Martha would meet villagers here in order to treat their ailments or cut their hair. There is a small cabinet in the room containing tools for surgery, dentistry, and hair cutting, and a shelf packed with bottles and jars.

The following drugs and medicines can be found in the surgery. Their rules can be found in **WFRP** on pages 306–307.

Drugs and Medicine

- Ten bottles of digestive tonic.
- Two bottles containing Healing Draughts.
- Three jars containing Healing Poultices.

Herbs

- A small chunk of Earth Root (2 doses).
- A large chunk of Mandrake Root (6 doses).
- A jar of Moonflower (5 doses).
- A sprig of Nightshade (3 doses).
- A large sprig of Salwort (6 doses).

Martha is not in the building. She is taking care of a number of village children in the temple.

Getting the Most from the Barbershop and Surgery

Characters can raid Martha's medicine cabinet.

In order to be sure what the drugs and medicine do, they will have to pass Easy (+40) Lore (Medicine) Tests; otherwise, they will have to guess.

To know what the herbs are, and what uses they may have, Characters must pass an Easy (+40) Lore (Herbs) or Average (+20) Lore (Plants) Test.

The Moonflower must be burned within a short distance of the Jabberslythe's nose in order to have any chance of an effect.

Mandrake Root and Nightshade could conceivably be made into pastes that could be smeared over a Character's clothing or armour, though this will take an **Average (+20) Trade (Poisoner)** Test.

If the Jabberslythe uses a tongue attack against such a Character, it ingests a dose of the drug.

UBERSREIK ADVENTURES: THE MAD MEN OF GOTHEIM

The Temple of Sigmar

Gotheim's sizeable Temple of Sigmar is a looming, stone building topped with an impressive brass dome — now a distinct, green verdigris, which can be spotted from several miles away on a sunny day. Stained-glass windows along the sides depict eight different scenes from the life of Sigmar. They are crudely made, but colourful, and draw pilgrims and sightseers from miles around.

A determined struggle clearly took place outside the temple. Broken bodies are scattered between enormous footprints, and weapons lie abandoned to all sides. The village priestess's headless corpse lies near the centre, her hand still gripping tight to a warhammer. Her head, and one of her boots, is nowhere to be seen. Puddles of stinking, deep-purple fluid, viscous and acrid, pool between the corpses and in the over-sized footprints. The same purple fluid coats the abandoned weapons and is splashed on the temple's external walls. Half a body hangs from the temple roof, its face a mask of frozen terror.

The purple fluid is Jabberslythe blood. An appropriate **Lore** Test (such as Lore (Poisoner) or Lore (Monsters)) determines the foul stuff has value in the creation of certain poisons. A vial has a base selling price of 10 shillings to apothecaries interested in such. However, the blood is a particularly noxious and somewhat tainted substance. Prolonged contact with Jabberslythe blood (a minute or more) counts as a Minor Exposure to Corruption unless careful precautions are taken.

As the Characters draw close, they can hear the laughter of children echoing from within the cold darkness of the temple.

Standing in contrast to most of the village, the temple's interior is untouched. A walkway stretching the length of the nave is decorated with a shimmering mosaic depicting Sigmar's Hammer. At the far end of the temple lies a raised dais upon which stands a grey oak lectern. Behind that there is a large, empty throne, left vacant for the prophesied return of the God-King to hold back the End Times.

Three children are playing inside. Their noisy game involves racing at top speed in a circle round and round the dais, arms waving as they go. Despite the seeming aimlessness of their passage, they are clearly enjoying themselves and laughing excitedly.

Martha Scheren stands behind the lectern, scribbling notes in the margins of an illustrated history of the early emperors.



The Brats: Perle, Schneck, and Kal

Perle is a girl of seven with long dark hair in plaits and a face like a gibbous moon. Schneck is a snot-nosed boy of five with a scruffy thatch of red hair. Kal is a boy of twelve with pale anaemic skin and lank blond locks. The three children are full of mischief and completely uncaring of the carnage outside.

The children did not witness the Jabberslythe attack, but they are happy to pretend otherwise if the Characters talk to them. They have various wild ideas about the nature of the beast, and compete with one another to tell the most interesting story.

The boys are in agreement that the monster was a gigantic fire-breathing Turtle. Perle disagrees and claims that it was a flying mutant Beaver. If they are asked about the attack they excitedly regale the Characters with lurid and gruesome details of their own invention.

'Oh, stranger, it was **awesome**! The turtle came and snapped up Frau Kenner and bit her into 17 bits! Then it breathed fire over nasty Fritz Bauer, and burned him all up. Ooh, he deserved it so he did. He was always braying at us for running through his fields of wheat. That's not very naughty is it?'

If not asked questions, they continue to play, occasionally casting snarky taunts in the Characters' direction.

If Martha is removed as a bad influence, the children will listen quickly to reason.

Until this happens, the children play, scream, and throw insults.

Martha Scheren the Barber Surgeon

Martha is an elderly lady with a kindly face and long tresses of grey hair. Originally from Carroburg, she has travelled widely practising medicine throughout the Reikland before settling in Gotheim. She carries a bow and a quiver full of arrows.

Martha is profoundly disturbed having witnessed the Jabberslythe attack. She has become enraged and inspired to contemplate a suicidal attempt to slay the creature. Martha's plan is to use the children as bait to draw the Jabberslythe from its lair, which she believes to be a craggy hill deep in the woods to the north of the village. If the book is wrestled from her, the pages will reveal that it is full of scrawled prayers interspersed with diagrams showing small figures running about in circles, a large monster appearing, and then a stick figure jumping up and killing it with a last-minute arrow.

Of course Martha's plan is insane, but coaxing the Jabberslythe with bait might well work, and there are some tasty goats in the barn to the north. Unfortunately, Martha is very attached to her plan. If the Characters attempt to Charm her she will pretend to listen to reason, and go along with anything suggested until her opportunity to throw the children at the beast presents itself.

Martha can only be influenced with threats, and even that is difficult.

A successful Very Hard (-30) Intimidate Test so frightens her from her suicidal plans that she instead curls into a ball of catatonic terror. From then onwards, and for the rest of her life, she runs in fear whenever the intimidating Character draws close.



POSSIBLE RED HERRING

It may be that the characters decide to investigate the hill in the woods after talking to Martha. This would be a lengthy journey with no point. However, the path Martha plans to take runs by the lake to the north. If the Characters take this route, they encounter Gerd Fleisher the butcher and Maria Bäcker the baker, who can put them on the right track.

The Brook, the Lake, and the Levee

A small, fast-flowing brook called the Mühlbach lies to the east of Gotheim. Two old flour mills are situated next to the stream, their large waterwheels turning constantly in the current.

The source of the brook is a large lake that lies on higher ground further to the north. The lake is banked up with a pile of stone and earth which directs the flow of the brook and protects the village from flooding.

Gerd Fleisher and Maria Bäcker have made their way to the levee and are attempting to tear it down with picks and shovels. They have convinced themselves that the water will pour from the lake and flood the stone circle to the south. Should they succeed, they will instead flood the village.

THE JABBERSLYTHE

An excerpt, by Karl Hlodwig, 1855 IC

Beware the Jabberslythe, my king! The tongue that flies, the wings that beat! Beware fell claws, its toady cling To forests dark with limbs so fleet!

Lo, **Sigmar** gripped Hammer gold; And to the Reikwald foe he sought— By **Morr**'s garden, 'gainst stone so old, God-King drifted o'er all he'd wrought.

And, as Bless'd man weigh'd up fate, The Jabberslythe, tusk'd maw of snag, Did roll and lop and broken gait, Its moans a strain of wicked scrag!

Lo, **Sigmar**, swung Warhammer true, Yet, one, and two, and three, he missed! Mind aghast as misdoubt broke to A soul so strong, yet now a-twist!

Gerd Fleisher the Butcher

Gerd is a large heavy-set man with a broken nose and a truculant attitude. He is missing most of his left ear and is a little deaf, though is far too proud to admit it. Assuming no one mentions his partial deafness, he is friendly and somewhat sensitive. However, he is a terror to those who rouse his ire, and never backs down.

If he is asked why he wants to cause a flood, Gerd tearfully admits that he shamefully fled when the monster attacked the village. As he hid, he thinks he saw the attacking creature stalk through the darkness before taking off from the Temple of Sigmar. He thinks it flew out the village and then landed again at the stone circle.

So, he reasons, he has to flood the circle, and quickly, before the monster flees! He is adamant the monster is still in the circle, and cannot be persuaded otherwise, even should he be led to it.

Unfortunately, Gerd is too far gone to ever see reason again.

The Characters must physically prevent him from carrying out his plan. No matter what should happen in the future, Gerd does everything in his power to return to the dam and tear it down. Should he suffer repeated failures, he learns to be patient and cunning.



Maria Bäcker the Baker

Maria is a short elderly lady with a shock of curly red hair turning silver. Her easy smile reveals jostling snaggle teeth. She and Gerd are old friends, and she is supportive of his plans, believing everything Gerd says without question. Maria did not witness the Jabberslythe herself, but she is an elderly and easily confused person at the best of times, and the close proximity of the Jabberslythe has driven her close to the edge.

The only way to get through to Maria and make her see sense is to remove Gerd from her earshot.

If this is not done, she will do everything in her power to tear down the dam. Without any other outside interference, this need to follow Gerd will dissipate in a week. Reuniting Maria with her nephew and colleague, Bruno from the forge, will also help to calm her down. Emil Brauer the Brewer.



Water Disaster

If the levee is destroyed, water floods straight down the hillside and into Gotheim, causing all manner of additional disaster, ruining acres of wheat crop, drowning goats, and destroying many of the dwellings still intact.

Should this occur, anyone still alive in the village will drown if they can't reach higher ground.

To the Stone Circle

After meeting Gerd and Maria, the Characters have all the information they need to find the Jabberslythe. The monster did land there, then slunk off to lick its wounds in the nearby cave. It lies there still, growing hungrier by the minute.

COMPLICATIONS

Whilst the locations in the village follow a relatively logical path, and will likely be encountered as described, sometimes Players head off in unexpected directions.

The following provides advice for the most likely issues you may face should your Characters decide to tackle the adventure in a different fashion.

Over Too Soon?

Gerd the Butcher and Maria the Baker give directions to the stone circle, where the Characters can find tracks to the Jabberslythe's resting place. If the Characters head straight towards the lake, there is a risk the Jabberslythe will be encountered before the Characters can interact with anyone else.

This does not need to be an issue. Fighting the Jabberslythe in a weakened state is intended as a reward for proactive Players, so you should be careful not to penalise those who make speedy progress.

However, if the Characters decide to head for the lake before investigating the rest of Gotheim, it may be better to have Gerd forget where he saw the Jabberslythe land. However, he does mention that he knows of another villager who saw it. The party can then head off to find another NPC of your choice to point them to the stone circle and the Jabberslythe.

I Don't Get It

If the Characters carry out an inept or unlucky investigation, they may decide to leave Gotheim without encountering the Jabberslythe at all. There are some different approaches you can take in such a situation.

Priestess's Head

The priestess's missing head can be found by any Character who goes searching for extra clues concerning what's happening in Gotheim. It was dropped some distance away from the village's temple just inside the eastern palisade. Characters may extrapolate from this that the Jabberslythe flew in an easterly direction.

Roaring Beast

In the final moments of its regeneration the Jabberslythe gives vent to a great snickering roar of relief. The sound echoes from the general direction of the cave to the east of the village. The beast has given away its location. But it is also fully healed.

Martha's Crusade

If the Characters bypass the temple until the end of their time in the village, then Martha can be used to lead them to the Jabberslythe. In this case she does not head north for the hills, but leads the unsuspecting children straight to the Cool House.

Securing Help

The Characters may very well decide, perhaps wisely, that confronting an enormous Jabberslythe is a little too much for them. That being the case, they may head off out of the village seeking assistance. Securing help from a nearby town, such as Ubersreik, may involve further adventures in and of themselves. The roads of the Empire are dangerous, after all, and the villages and towns are little better.

However, if you wish to make it easy on the group, you could say that there are some state troops or free companies of mercenaries in the area who are at relative liberty to follow rumours of wandering monsters. Assuming the Characters persuade their commanders, they can all return to Gotheim to kill the Jabberslythe.

Of course, such actions inevitably result in the destruction of the village. The regenerated Jabberslythe makes short work of any survivors of its first assault, or the maddened villagers visit disaster upon themselves. So, if the Characters choose to seek aid and return to Gotheim at the head of a military unit, the price for their circumspection should be the utter destruction of Gotheim.

THE SUMMARY OF THE VILLAGERS' ANTI-JABBERSLYTHE MEASURES						
Spiky Suit	A Character could wear Hugo's spiky suit, causing the Jabberslythe to injure itself when making Tongue Attacks.					
Drop Trap	Heavy or flaming items could be dropped on the Jabberslythe from the branches of nearby trees, provided it was baited into position					
Bait	The Jabberslythe is not an imaginative beast, and would probably advance on people, or goats, without consideration for traps or less obvious targets.					
Drugs	The barbershop and surgery's medicine cabinet could be put to use in an effort to kill the Jabberslythe. Martha could help with this if no one else knows the relevant Trade Skills.					

TO THE JABBERSLYTHE'S LAIR

A small circle of short, red ogham stones stands just east of Gotheim. This place is sacred to the Old Faith, and fertility rites are performed here each spring.

The Jabberslythe landed here after fleeing the village. Its heavy shuffling tracks head along a narrow muddy forest path into the trees. More of the creature's filthy purple blood is splashed everywhere.

THE COOL HOUSE

The cool house is a cave in the woods not far from the red ogham stone circle. In winter, villagers collect ice from the surface of the lake and pile it deep into the back of the cave. During warmer months they bring milk, cheese, and meat here to keep it cold.

The wounded Jabberslythe crept into the chill cave to rest and regenerate. The beast's tracks lead straight into the wide cave mouth. Anyone approaching the cave can hear the strange burbling noises made by the creature as it rests. It will attack anyone who enters the cave or who causes a disturbance near the cave mouth. Read or paraphrase the following to the Players as the Jabberslythe appears.

The terrible monster within the cave is revealed to you. It is a horrendous beast, shaped somewhat like a squat and flabby dragon. Its bilious green skin hangs in flaccid folds and a pair of tatty undersized wings flutter upon its spined and dark, hairy back. It pulls itself forward on an assortment of limbs, four at the rear being almost vestigial, like those of a massive but withered insect. Its two front legs are powerful, muscular, tipped with snatching claws. Its massive scaled head is bedecked with curling horns, biting pointed teeth and protruding amphibian eyes of flame.

The Monster

With features combining the most repellent aspects of toad, dragon, and insect, the Jabberslythe is one of the most hideous creatures of Chaos to haunt the wild places of the Old World. Not only is it a formidable foe, but those in its vicinity are struck by a contagious madness that can easily break the mind.



JABBERSLYTHE					HE							
	М	WS	BS	S	Т	Ι	Agi	Dex	Int	WP	Fel	W
	7	45	40	55	50	20	35	-	10	20	-	*

Traits: Armour 3, Bestial, Bite+9, Bounce, Corrosive Blood, Distracting, Infected, Maddening Aura (see page 17), Night Vision, Size (Enormous), Tail +8, Tongue Attack +5 (12), Venom, Weapon +9.

*: Refer to the **Timeline** on page 5 for the Jabberslythe's Wounds and also any Critical Wounds it may currently suffer.

It roars as it charges.

NEW TRAIT: MADDENING AURA

At the start of every Round, every Character within 20 yards of the creature must make an **Average (+20) Cool** Test. If failed, roll on the Creeping Irrationality table. If Fumbled, the Character also gains +1 Corruption Point — further, should the Character become corrupted, this automatically results in a Mental Corruption. Where relevant, any Maddening Aura effects are cumulative.

1D10	Creeping Irrationality
1-2	Careful Now: On your next Turn, you can either take a Move or an Action, not both. You then shake it off.
3-4	What's Going On? You suffer the Surprised Condition.
5-6	My Plan is Working! On your Turn, you must take the same actions you took on the previous Round. If, for some reason, you cannot do this, you must do what you can to prepare for those actions on your next Turn. Duration: 1d10 Rounds.
7	Who said I was Paranoid? You become subject to Animosity toward a random Character. Duration: Lasting.
8	Are You Talking to Me? You become subject to Hatred toward a random Character. Duration: Lasting.
9	Kill it! Kill it! Kill it! You become subject to Frenzy. Duration: Lasting.
10	Twitch, Twitch: Suffer one Mental Corruption (see WFRP page 185). Duration: Lasting.

Lasting: These last for 1d10 – Willpower Bonus hours (to a minimum of 1 hour). After which, perform an Average (+20) Cool Test. If failed, the effect is permanent. The Difficulty of the Test may vary if the Character has limited or prolonged exposure, as determined by the GM. A Player may spend a Resilience point to permanently lose the long-term effects of Maddening Aura, though the memories of the horrific creature never diminish. A Character may expend 1 Resolve point to ignore the negative consequences of the Maddening Aura for 1 Round.

AFTERMATH

After the horrors of the Jabberslythe attack, the survival of the village of Gotheim is in the balance. In order for the village to have any chance of recovery the Characters must ensure the following factors are achieved.

- The Jabberslythe must be slain.
- The flood must be prevented.
- At least one of the following disasters must be averted: Death of Wilhelm, Burning of Forge, Loss of Children.

If these criteria are not met, then the village is doomed to fall to ruin. The few wretched survivors will struggle to find lives elsewhere and the site of Gotheim becomes known as a cursed, forsaken place.

If these criteria are met then there is still hope for the village. Over the coming hours and days more survivors of the Jabberslythe's attack emerge from their hiding places. They work together to restore what they can of their shattered community. None will be left unchanged, and whilst they can provide no reward, they certainly regard the Characters as heroic saviours.

REWARDS

As well as the normal XP you offer for good roleplaying and having fun, you should apportion XP at the end of each session using the following guidelines:

20 points for dealing with the Maddened Villagers outside Gotheim. 10 points for each villager saved from disaster.

- 40 points if Gotheim spared from further destruction.
- 60 points if the Jabberslythe is slain by the Characters.

20 points if the Jabberslythe is slain as the result of calling in outside assistance.

HANDOUTS

Handout 1: Map of Gotheim



PREPARE TO EXPERIENCE THE EPIC CAMPAIGN THAT STARTED IT ALL



To find out more about in the Enemy Within campaign, as well as a host of other game expansions and resources, visit

www.cubicle7games.com



THE FIRST COMPANION VOLUME TO ONE OF THE GREATEST CAMPAIGNS EVER WRITTEN



To find out more about the Enemy Within campaign and its Companions, as well as a host of other game expansions and resources, visit

www.cubicle7games.com

